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 July 12, 2017 

To: LAFCo Commissioners 

From: Martha Poyatos, Executive Officer 

Subject: LAFCo File 17-03—Proposed Annexation of 900 Portola Road, Portola Valley (APN 
076-261-010) to West Bay Sanitary District (1.68 acres) 

Summary 

This proposal, submitted by landowner petition, requests annexation to connect the proposed 
Windmill School and Family Education Center to the West Bay Sanitary District sewer main. The 
proposal has 100 percent landowner consent and waiver of conducting authority proceedings is 
also requested. The annexing territory is located in the Town of Portola Valley at 900 Portola 
Road near Wyndham Drive. Commission approval is recommended. 

Departmental Reports 

County Assessor: The net assessed land valuation shown in the records of the County Assessor 
is $3,083,912. The boundaries of the annexation as proposed conform to lines of assessment 
and ownership. 

County Clerk: The territory has no registered voters. Annexation would not conflict with any 
political subdivision boundaries. 

County Public Works: The map and legal description required by the State Board of Equalization 
have not yet been submitted. 

Town of Portola Valley: The Town's general plan designation is Local Shopping and Service. On 
September 14, 2016, the Town took several actions related to the project including adoption of 
a Mitigated Negative Declaration, General Plan and Zoning Map Amendment, Conditional Use 
Permit, variance to provide for an eight-feet-tall sound wall, and Site Development Permit. 
Annexation to West Bay Sanitary District and connection to public sewer was a condition of 
approval of the Use Permit. A road encroachment permit will need to be reviewed and issued 
by the Town Engineer.  

County Environmental Health: The California Water Service Company and West Bay Sanitary 
District provide the available water and sewer service in the area. The applicant must obtain a 
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permit for septic tank abandonment, which shall be inspected and approved by Environmental 
Health. 

West Bay Sanitary District: A District Class 2 permit is required ($250 application). Connection 
fee and annual sewer service fee to be determined based upon current entitlement and 
predicted flows provided by developer for the commercial property. A reimbursement 
agreement fee for connecting to the existing gravity main line is estimated to be $266,967. The 
proponent will be required to construct a gravity sewer service lateral, with new associated 
private easement, that will connect to the existing gravity main on existing property. All costs to 
be paid by proponent. 

Executive Officer’s Recommendation 

This proposal has been submitted by landowner petition in order to connect the proposed 
Windmill School and Family Education Center to public sewer. The 1.68-acre project site was 
formerly occupied by a retail nursery consisting of limited structures. The territory proposed for 
annexation is located in the Town of Portola Valley at 900 Portola Road near Wyndham Drive. 

The annexation area is within the sphere of influence of West Bay Sanitary District adopted by 
the Commission in 1984 and is consistent with the District’s plans for extending service. 
Approval of the annexation is recommended. 

California Environmental Quality Act 

As Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the Town of Portola 
Valley adopted the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Plan 
- Windmill School and Family Education Center on September 28, 2016. In doing so, the Town 
adopted mitigation measures that reduced potential impacts on the environment to less-than-
significant levels. Potential impacts were identified in the following areas: Biologic Resources, 
Cultural Resources, and Geology and Soils.  

As the responsible agency under CEQA, the Commission must consider the Final Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared by the District.1 If an impact is outside the 
responsibility of the Commission and was previously mitigated by the lead agency, the 
Commission may make the finding that the impacts are within the responsibility of another 
public agency and not LAFCo and that mitigation measures have been adopted by another 
agency or can and should be adopted by another agency. 

Waiver of Conducting Authority Proceedings 

Section 56663(c) of the Cortese-Knox-Herzberg (CKH) Act specifies that the Commission may 
waive conducting authority proceedings for annexations of uninhabited territory with 
100 percent landowner consent provided that no objection is submitted by subject property 
owners or voters. The purpose of the conducting authority proceeding is to measure landowner 
or voter protest within the affected territory. Paragraph (c) was added to Section 56663 to 

                                                 
1 The Final Initial Study/Negative Declaration may be found on the LAFCo May 17, 2017 meeting website: 
http://lafco.smcgov.org/events/regular-lafco-meeting-26 

http://lafco.smcgov.org/events/regular-lafco-meeting-26
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streamline proceedings in which landowners have already given consent to uninhabited 
annexation. The landowners have requested and staff recommends waiver of conducting 
authority proceedings. 

Recommended Actions 

Staff recommends that the Commission take the following actions:  

1. By Motion, certify that the Commission has considered the Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring Plan - Windmill School and Family 
Education Center, and find that impacts and mitigation measures are within the 
responsibility of the Town of Portola Valley and not LAFCo and that mitigation measures 
have been adopted by the District. 

2. By Resolution, approve LAFCo File No. 17-03—Proposed Annexation of 900 Portola 
Road, Portola Valley (APN 076-261-010) to West Bay Sanitary District (1.68 acres) and 
Waive Conducting Authority Proceeding conditioned upon submittal of the map and 
legal description required by the State Board of Equalization. 

 
Attachment A: Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 
cc:  Phil Scott, General Manager, West Bay Sanitary District 
 Karen Tate, Windmill School, Applicant 
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